

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

**ENHANCED DISPROPORTIONATE MINORITY CONTACT
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT II
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION,
CORRECTIONS STANDARDS AUTHORITY
BOARD OF STATE AND COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS**

AND

COUNTY OF ORANGE

This Grant Agreement is made this 1st day of January, 2010 ~~October, 2012~~ between the State of California, Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation acting by and through the State Corrections Standards Authority California Board of State and Community Corrections, hereafter referred to as the "GSA" "BSCC" and

COUNTY OF ORANGE

an entity duly organized, existing and acting pursuant to the laws of the State of California, hereafter referred to as the "Grantee."

The parties agree as follows:

SECTION 1. PROJECT SUMMARY

~~The Disproportionate Minority Contact Technical Assistance Project (DMC-TAP) II grant program provides funding to support probation departments in understanding and identifying DMC and implement broad systems reform. It is designed to equip these agencies with the tools and resources needed to provide leadership in developing and/or strengthening community-based DMC reduction activities via a three phased approach: DMC Infrastructure and Education; Stakeholder Collaboration and DMC Reduction Plan Development; and Implementation of DMC Reduction Plan. This contract encompasses Phase II, the purpose of which is to support the education of stakeholders (e.g., police, judges, district attorneys, public defenders, social service agencies, community-based organizations) about the probation department's disparity and disproportionality reduction efforts and to engage these stakeholders in the development of a long-term reduction plan as part of a system improvement/reform effort.~~

~~The overarching goals of the DMC-TAP II grant project are to:~~

- ~~1. Educate juvenile justice professionals in DMC: specifically all department staff, peripherally stakeholders (including relevant community members); engage all levels of department staff in the work to reduce racial and ethnic disparities;~~
- ~~2. Collect and analyze data to identify decision points where disparity/disproportionality occurs;~~
- ~~3. Enhance data system capacity for the purpose of determining the extent of racial and ethnic disparities in the system, the causes of such disparities and correlating trends;~~

- ~~4. Develop and produce comprehensive county wide DMC Reduction Plans including issues identification and correlating county specific solutions; and~~
- ~~5. Ensure viable processes/mechanisms in place for monitoring over time.~~
 - To reduce the number of youth detained for violations of probation and bench warrants.
 - To complete the R.A.I. validation process with the chosen vendor.
 - To continue with implementation and evaluation of the Juvenile Justice Advocacy program.
 - To complete development of the community based treatment group addressing marijuana use in the targeted population. (Boys and Girls Club of Garden Grove)
 - To fully implement the department's recently developed sanctions grid department-wide.
 - To evaluate effectiveness regarding interventions, specifically, referrals to the probation department's Youth Reporting Centers, Home Supervision Program, Juvenile Justice Advocates program and Marijuana Intervention groups.
 - To develop and create referral/records for additional community based resources as needed to address youth needs prior to their exhibiting behaviors warranting a probation violation.

SECTION 2. ASSURANCES

- A. Grantee agrees to comply with all conditions of this Grant Agreement, all standard Grant Agreement conditions as contained in Exhibit A, all federally required assurances as contained in Exhibit B, general terms and conditions contained in Exhibit C, and all budget items and conditions as contained in the Application for Funding.
- B. Grantee agrees to comply with the financial and administration requirements set forth in the current edition of the CSA's BSCC's *Grant Administration and Audit Guide, Federal Juvenile Justice Grants*.

SECTION 3. PROJECT OFFICIALS

- A. The CSA's BSCC's Executive Director or designee shall be the CSA's BSCC's representative for administration of the Grant Agreement and shall have authority to make determinations and findings with respect to each controversy arising under or in connection with the interpretation, performance, or payment for work performed under this Grant Agreement. Disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit A.
- B. The Grantee project officials shall be those identified as follows and as stipulated in Section 1 of the approved Grant Proposal:

(1) The authorized officer with legal authority to sign:

Name: Sean Barry
 Title: Chief Deputy Probation Officer
 Address: 1535 E. Orangewood Avenue, Anaheim, CA 92805
 Telephone Number: (714) 937-4705

Fax Number: (714) 558-6332

E-mail Address: sean.barry@prob.ocgov.com

- (2) ~~The designated financial officer authorized to receive warrants~~ The Chief Probation Officer:

Name: ~~Brian Wayt~~ Steven J. Sentman

Title: ~~Director, Administrative and Fiscal Division~~ Chief Probation Officer

Address: 1535 E. Orangewood Avenue, Anaheim, CA 92805

Telephone Number: (714) ~~937-4728~~ 935-6647

Fax Number: (714) ~~558-3552~~ 935-7630

E-mail Address: brian.wayt.steven.sentman@prob.ocgov.com

- (3) The designated financial officer authorized to receive warrants:

Name: Lorna Winterroud

Title: Financial Officer

Address: 1535 E. Orangewood Avenue, Anaheim, CA 92801

Telephone Number: (714) 937-4746

Fax Number: (714) 558-3552

E-mail Address: lorna.winterroud@prob.ocgov.com

- C. Either party may change its project representatives upon written notice to the other party.

SECTION 4. REPORTS

- A. Grantee will submit quarterly progress reports in a format developed by the GSA BSCC that describe progress made with respect to program objectives and activities, and performance indicator results for the Program Purpose Area 10, identified as Appendix B in the original RFP.

Reporting Period

Due No Later Than:

1. ~~July 1 – September 30, 2011~~ November 15, 2011

2. ~~October 1 – December 31, 2011~~ February 15, 2012

3. ~~January 1 – March 31, 2012~~ May 15, 2012

4. ~~April 1 – June 30, 2012~~ August 15, 2012

5. ~~July 1 – September 30, 2012~~ November 15, 2012

1. October 1 – December 30, 2012 February 15, 2013

2. January 1 – March 31, 2013 May 15, 2013

3. April 1 – June 30, 2013 August 15, 2013

4. July 1 – September 30, 2013 August 15, 2013

5. October 1 – December 31, 2013 November 15, 2014

SECTION 5. INVOICES

- A. The Grantee shall be paid in arrears by submitting a quarterly invoice for approved program expenditures for the reporting period and due dates noted above in Section 4.
- B. An invoice is due to the GSA **BSCC** even if grant funds are not expended or requested in the reporting period.

SECTION 6. GRANT AMOUNT AND LIMITATION

In no event shall the GSA **BSCC** be obligated to pay any amount in excess of the grant award. Grantee waives any and all claims against the GSA **BSCC**, the State of California, and the federal government on account of project costs that may exceed the sum of the grant award.

SECTION 7. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

- A. Grantee agrees that the GSA's **BSCC's** obligation to pay any sums to the Grantee under any provision of this Grant Agreement is contingent upon the availability of sufficient funds. This Grant Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made available by the Legislature and by Congress.
- B. This Grant Agreement is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by Congress or any statute enacted by Congress which may affect the provisions, terms or funding of this Grant Agreement in any manner.

SECTION 8. BUDGET

PROJECT LINE ITEM TOTALS				
LINE ITEM	GRANT FUNDS	CASH MATCH	IN-KIND MATCH	TOTAL
1. Salaries & Benefits	\$70,435.00 \$75,000.00	\$	\$	\$70,435.00 \$75,000.00
2. Services & Supplies	\$4,565.00	\$	\$	\$4,565.00
3. Professional Services	\$75,000.00	\$	\$	\$75,000.00
4. CBO Contracts	\$	\$	\$	\$
5. Indirect Costs	\$	\$	\$	\$
6. Fixed Assets/Equipment	\$	\$	\$	\$
7. Other	\$	\$	\$	\$
TOTAL	\$150,000.00	\$	\$	\$150,000.00

SECTION 9. AUDIT

Per Article 8 of the Standard Conditions, grant recipients must submit an audit of expenditures within 120 days following the end of the grant period. Grantees may choose

either a program specific audit or a single federal audit. Federal guidelines allow grant recipients receiving \$500,000 or more in federal funds in a fiscal year to use their federal juvenile justice grant funds to pay for the cost of the audit. Grantees falling below the \$500,000 threshold must use non-federal funds (i.e., match funds) to pay for audit costs. **For purposes of this grant award, please check one of the boxes below to indicate the grantee's choice for meeting the audit requirement.**

☐ In conformance with Federal OMB Circular #A-133, and the California State Controller's Accounting Standards and Procedures Chapter 23, Grant Accounting Index, the identified grant will be included in the City/County **Single Federal Audit Report**, which will be submitted to the GSA **BSCC** within the required timeframe of 120 days from the end of the 15-month grant period. NOTE: Should an extension be needed, please provide in advance of the deadline a written justification that indicates reasons for the extension and the timeframe needed.

OR

☐ In conformance with Federal OMB Circular #A-133, and the California State Controller's Accounting Standards and Procedures Chapter 23, Grant Accounting Index, the grantee will provide a **Program Specific Final Audit Report** to the GSA **BSCC** within the required timeframe of 120 days from the end of the 15-month grant period.

SECTION 10. SCOPE OF WORK

Grantee agrees to implement and complete the project in accordance with the approved grant reapplication and as outlined in the RFP and RFA.

**DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION
CORRECTIONS STANDARDS AUTHORITY
BOARD OF STATE AND COMMUNITY CORECTIONS**

EXHIBIT A

**ENHANCED DISPROPORTIONATE MINORITY CONTACT AGREEMENT
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT II
STANDARD CONDITIONS**

ARTICLE 1. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement is not assignable by the Grantee, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the State in the form of a formal written amendment.

ARTICLE 2. AMENDMENT

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties and approved as required. No oral understanding or agreement not incorporated in this Agreement is binding on any of the parties.

ARTICLE 3. PROJECT COSTS

The GSA's BSCC's *Grant Administration and Audit Guide, Federal Juvenile Justice Grants* outlines eligible and ineligible project costs, as well as match and project income requirements. Grantee is responsible for ensuring that all invoices contain only eligible project costs.

ARTICLE 4. GRANTEE'S GENERAL RESPONSIBILITY

Grantee is solely responsible for the project activities as identified in the Grant Proposal. Review and approval by the GSA BSCC is solely for the purpose of proper administration of grant funds by the GSA BSCC and shall not be deemed to relieve or restrict the Grantee's responsibility.

ARTICLE 5. GRANTEE ASSURANCES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

This Grant Agreement is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California and the United States Department of Justice. Grantee shall at all times comply with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations, and all applicable local ordinances, specifically including, but not limited to, environmental, procurement and safety laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances.

B. Fulfillment of Assurances and Declarations

Grantee shall fulfill all assurances, declarations, representations, and statements made by the Grantee in the Grant Proposal, documents, amendments, approved modifications, and communications filed in support of its request for grant funds.

C. Use of Grant Funds

Grantee shall expend all grant and matching funds solely for eligible project costs. Grantee shall, upon demand, remit to the GSA BSCC any grant funds and interest or income not expended for eligible project costs or an amount equal to any grant funds expended by the Grantee in violation of the terms, provisions, conditions, or commitments of this Grant Agreement.

D. Permits and Licenses

Grantee agrees to procure all permits and licenses necessary to complete the project, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices necessary or incidental to the due and lawful proceeding of the project work.

E. Contracting Requirements

In accordance with the provisions of this Grant Agreement, the Grantee may contract with public or private contractors of services for activities necessary for the program implementation and activities of the project. Grantee agrees that in the event of an inconsistency between the Grant Agreement, its Exhibits and Grantee's agreement for services with a contractor, the Grant Agreement and its Exhibits will prevail. Grantee shall ensure that the contractor complies with all requirements of the Grant Agreement.

Grantee assures that for any contract awarded by the Grantee, such insurance and fidelity bonds, as is customary and appropriate, will be obtained.

Grantee agrees to place appropriate language in all contracts for work on the project requiring the Grantee's contractors to:

1. Books and Records

Maintain adequate fiscal and project books, records, documents, and other evidence pertinent to the contractor's work on the project in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Adequate supporting documentation shall be maintained in such detail so as to permit tracing transactions from the invoices, to the accounting records, to the supporting documentation. These records shall be maintained for a minimum of three years after acceptance of the final grant project audit under the Grant Agreement, and shall be subject to examination and/or audit by the GSA BSCC or designees, state government auditors or designees, or by federal government auditors or designees.

2. Access to Books and Records

Make such books, records, supporting documentations, and other evidence available to the GSA BSCC or designees, the Department of General Services,

the Department of Finance, the Bureau of State Audits, their designated representatives, and federal government auditors or designees, during the course of the project and for a minimum of three years after acceptance of the final grant project audit. The Contractor shall provide suitable facilities for access, monitoring, inspection, and copying of books and records related to the grant-funded project.

ARTICLE 6. PROJECT ACCESS

The Grantee shall insure that the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC**, or any authorized representative, will have suitable access to the project activities, sites, and staff at all reasonable times during project implementation.

ARTICLE 7. RECORDS

- A. The Grantee shall establish an official file for the project. The file shall contain adequate documentation of all actions that have been taken with respect to the project, in accordance with generally accepted government accounting principles.
- B. The Grantee shall establish separate accounting records and maintain documents, and other evidence sufficient to reflect properly the amount, receipt, and disposition of all project funds, including grant funds and any matching funds by the Grantee and the total cost of the project. Source documents include copies of all awards, applications, approved modifications, financial records, and narrative reports.
- C. Personnel and payroll records shall include the time and attendance reports for all individuals reimbursed under the grant, whether they are employed full-time or part-time. Time and effort reports are required for consultants and contractors.
- D. The Grantee shall maintain documentation for donated goods and/or services, including the basis for valuation.
- E. Grantee agrees to protect records adequately from fire or other damage. When records are stored away from the Grantee's principal office, a written index of the location of records stored must be on hand and ready access must be assured.
- F. All Grantee records relevant to the project must be preserved a minimum of three years after closeout of the grant project and shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, examination, monitoring, copying, excerpting, transcribing, and auditing by the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC** or designees. If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, or other action involving the records has been started before the expiration of the three-year period, the records must be retained until the completion of the action and resolution of all issues which arise from it or until the end of the regular three-year period, whichever is later.

ARTICLE 8. ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

All funds received by the Grantee shall be deposited into separate fund accounts which identify the funds and clearly show the manner of their disposition. Grantee agrees that the audit and accounting procedures shall be in accordance with generally accepted government

accounting principles and practices (see *Accounting Standards and Procedures for Counties*, California State Controller, Division of Local Government Fiscal Affairs) and adequate supporting documentation shall be maintained in such detail so as to provide an audit trail which will permit tracing transactions from support documentation to the accounting records to the financial reports and invoices. The Grantee further agrees to the following audit requirements:

A. Federal Single Audit Act

If the Grantee expends \$500,000 or more in a year in federal funds, Grantee agrees to comply with the provisions pursuant to the Federal Office of Management and Budget Circular No. A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." Circular No. A-133 requires non-federal entities that meet the expenditure criteria to have either a single or program specific audit conducted for that expenditure year.

B. Interim Audit

The GSA BSCC reserves the right to call for a program audit or a system audit at any time between the execution of this Grant Agreement and the completion or termination of the project. At any time, the GSA BSCC may disallow all or part of the cost of the activity or action determined to be not in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Grant Agreement, or take other remedies legally available.

C. Annual Audit

1. Within 120 calendar days of the Grant Agreement end date, all Grantees must obtain and submit an annual program audit to the GSA BSCC. Only Grantees expending \$500,000 or more in a year are authorized to use federal funds to pay the costs associated with performing the audit. Should the federal single audit report include this grant project, the Grantee may submit the federal single audit to satisfy the annual audit requirement. The audit shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and government auditing standards for financial and compliance audits.
2. Since the audit function must maintain organizational independence, the Grantee's financial officer for this project shall not perform the annual audit. If the Grantee's internal auditor performs the audit, the auditor must be organizationally independent from the Grantee's accounting and project management functions. Additionally, Grantee's internal auditors who report to the financial officer, or to whom the financial officer reports, shall not perform the audit. The person conducting the audit shall be a certified public accountant, unless a Grantee auditor completes the audit.

ARTICLE 9. CHANGES

- A. Grantee shall immediately advise the GSA BSCC of any significant problems or changes arising during the course of the project.

- B. No change or modification in the project will be permitted without prior written approval from the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC**. Changes may include modification to project scope, changes to performance measures, compliance with collection of data elements, and other significant changes in the budget or program component contained in the approved Grant Proposal. Changes shall not be implemented by the project until authorized by the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC**.
- C. Under no circumstances will any budget line item changes be authorized which would cause the project to exceed the amount of the grant award identified in the Agreement. Further, in no event shall changes be authorized for the indirect costs line item that would result in that line item exceeding ten percent (10%) of the grant award.

ARTICLE 10. DISBURSEMENT

The Grantee shall be paid in arrears on invoices submitted to the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC** on the forms or processes determined by the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC**, certifying to the accuracy of the reports in accordance with generally accepted governmental accounting principles and ~~CSA~~ **BSCC** regulations, guidelines, policies, and procedures.

ARTICLE 11. WITHHOLDING OF GRANT DISBURSEMENTS

- A. The ~~CSA~~ **BSCC** may withhold all or any portion of the grant funds provided for by this Grant Agreement in the event that the Grantee has materially and substantially breached the terms and conditions of this Grant Agreement.
- B. For the final project year, at such time as the balance of federal funds allocated to the Grantee reaches five percent (5%), the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC** shall withhold that amount as security, to be released to the Grantee upon complying with all grant provisions, including: 1) submittal and approval of the final invoice; 2) submittal and approval of the final progress report; 3) submittal and approval of any additional required reports; and 4) submittal and approval of the final audit.
- C. The ~~CSA~~ **BSCC** will not reimburse Grantee for costs identified as ineligible for grant funding. If grant funds have been provided for costs subsequently discovered to be ineligible, the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC** may either withhold an equal amount from subsequent payments to the Grantee or require repayment of an equal amount to the state by the Grantee.
- D. In the event that grant funds are withheld from the Grantee, the ~~CSA's~~ **BCSS's** Executive Director or designee shall notify the Grantee of the reasons for withholding and advise the Grantee of the time within which the Grantee may remedy the failure or violation leading to the withholding.

ARTICLE 12. TERMINATION

- A. This Grant Agreement may be terminated at any time by the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC**, where it appears that there will be lack of grant funds available to fulfill this Grant Agreement, provided that after such termination, the Grantee shall be entitled to an

amount that equals the eligible project costs that have been incurred by the Grantee prior to such termination.

- B. This Grant Agreement may be terminated after the award of the Grant Agreement but prior to completion of the project, by the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC**, upon action or inaction by the Grantee that constitutes a material and substantial breach of this Grant Agreement. Such action or inaction by the Grantee includes but is not limited to:
1. Substantial alteration of the scope of the grant project without the prior written approval of the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC**;
 2. Refusal or inability to complete the grant project in a manner consistent with the grant proposal or approved modifications;
 3. Failure to provide the required local match share of the total project costs;
 4. Failure to meet prescribed assurances, commitments, Grant Agreement, record, accounting, auditing, and reporting requirements.
- C. Prior to terminating the Grant Agreement under this provision, the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC** shall provide the Grantee at least 30 days written notice stating the reasons for termination and effective date thereof. The Grantee may appeal the termination decision in accordance with Article 13.

ARTICLE 13. DISPUTES

- A. Grantee shall continue with the responsibilities under this Agreement during any dispute.
- B. The Grantee may appeal a ~~CSA~~ **BSCC** staff decision on the basis of alleged misapplication, capricious interpretation of the regulations, policies and procedures, or substantial differences of opinion that may occur concerning the proper application of regulations, policies or procedures.
- C. If the Grantee is dissatisfied with an action of ~~CSA~~ **BSCC** staff, the Grantee may appeal the cause of the dissatisfaction to the Deputy Director in charge of the Corrections Planning and Programs Division of the ~~CSA~~ **BSCC**. Such appeals shall be filed within 30 calendar days of the notification of action with which the Grantee is dissatisfied. The appeal shall be in writing, and:
- state the basis for the dissatisfaction;
 - state the action being requested of the Deputy Director; and,
 - include any documentation related to the cause for dissatisfaction.
- D. The Deputy Director will review the correspondence and related documentation and render a decision on the appeal within 30 calendar days, except in those cases where the Grantee withdraws or abandons the appeal. The procedural time requirement may be waived with the mutual consent of the Grantee and the Deputy

Director.

- E. The Deputy Director may render a decision based on the correspondence and related documentation submitted by the Grantee and may consider other relevant sources of information deemed appropriate. The decision of the Deputy Director shall be in writing and shall provide the rationale for the decision.
- F. If the Grantee is dissatisfied with the decision of the Deputy Director, the Grantee may file a request for review by the ~~GSA~~ **BSCC** Executive Director. Such a request shall be filed within 30 calendar days after receipt of the Deputy Director's decision. The requested review shall be in writing, and:
- state the basis for the dissatisfaction;
 - state the action being requested of the Executive Director; and
 - include any correspondence related to the appeal.
- G. The Executive Director, after reviewing the appeal and the correspondence related to the review, may decide the matter on the record or request additional information. After a decision is made by the Executive Director, notice of the decision shall be mailed to the Grantee. The decision of the Executive Director shall be final.

ARTICLE 14. WAIVER

The parties hereto may waive any of their rights under this Grant Agreement unless such waiver is contrary to law, provided that any such waiver shall be in writing and signed by the party making such waiver.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION
CORRECTIONS STANDARDS AUTHORITY
BOARD OF STATE AND COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS

EXHIBIT B

FEDERAL ASSURANCES

The Grantee hereby assures and certifies compliance with all federal statutes, regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements including the following:

1. As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, and implemented as 28 CFR, Part 69, the Grantee certifies that:
 - A. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the making of any federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal grant or cooperative agreement.
 - B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Grantee shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions.
 - C. The Grantee shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subgrants, contracts under grants and cooperative agreements and subcontracts) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.
2. As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 28 CFR, Part 67, the Grantee certifies that it and its principals:
 - A. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a denial of federal benefits by a State or Federal Court, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency.
 - B. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this application, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property.
 - C. Are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally, or civilly, charged by a governmental entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated above.

- D. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this Grant Agreement, had one or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default.
3. As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented at 28 CFR Part 67, the Grantee certifies that they will provide a drug-free workplace by:
- A. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;
 - B. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:
 - 1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
 - 2) The Grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
 - 3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
 - 4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace;
 - C. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant project be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
 - D. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the employee will:
 - 1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
 - 2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
 - E. Notifying the **GSA BSCC** in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph D.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to: Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, ATTN: Control Desk, 633 Indiana Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531. Notice shall include the identification number of each affected grant;
 - F. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph D.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted:
 - 1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, or
 - 2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

G. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of paragraphs A, B, C, D, E, and F.

4. Grantee agrees to comply with the financial and administration requirements set forth in the current edition of the *OJP Financial Guide*.
5. Grantee will maintain an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) if the grant award is more than \$25,000.
6. If the grant award is \$500,000 or more, and Grantee has 50 or more employees, Grantee must submit its EEOP within 60 days from the date of this award to the Federal Office for Civil Rights (OCR) (www.ojp.usdoj.gov/ocr). A copy of the federal approval letter must be submitted to the ~~GSA~~ BSCC. If Grantee has a current EEOP approval letter, it shall be submitted to the ~~GSA~~ BSCC.
7. Grantee acknowledges that failure to submit the required EEOP that is approved by the Office for Civil Rights is a violation of its Certified Assurances and may result in suspension or termination of funding, until such time as the Grantee is in compliance.
8. In the event a federal or state court or administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination after a due process hearing on grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, or disability against the Grantee, the Grantee will forward a copy of the finding to OCR.
9. Grantee agrees to comply with the organizational audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, as further described in the current edition of the *OJP Financial Guide*, Chapter 19.
10. Grantee agrees to comply with all confidentiality requirements of 42 U.S.C. section 3789 g and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or information.
11. Grantee agrees to comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research subjects, including obtainment of Institutional Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent.